APPROVED
CANDIA ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
MINUTES OF March 25, 2008

Present Boyd Chivers, Chair; Arlene Richter, Judy Szot, ldgByrd, Alternate;
Amanda Soares, Alternate.

The Chair called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Am&uiaes was seated for Ron
Howe and Ingrid Byrd was seated for Frank Albert.

Chair Chivers noted that a hearing impaired interpreter p@sent for an abutter and
also introduced the new secretary for the Zoning Bd&adron Carrier.

Approval of Minutes
Ingrid Byrd movedto approve the minutes of December 18, 2007 as presenteddAman
Soareseconded. 4 were in favor with 1 abstention.

Mail from the Southern New Hampshire Planning Commissegarding a workshop
was passed out to the board.

Chair Chivers asked if there was a report from subcomendh the by-laws. Ingrid Byrd
stated she had made some changes in terminology and nbéedegulations that were
not necessary that applied to larger municipalities. Jmht said she would meet with
Ingrid Byrd and have proposals ready to present to thedbma April 22, 2008. Boyd

Chivers asked that if any of the other board members imaddaas or revisions on the
by-laws to email their comments to Judy Szot.

7:15 PM — Case #551Applicant: Kenneth and Holly Choquette; Owner: Same;
Location: 34 Lane Road, Map 414 Lot 146; For an appeal from an adminisitive
decision, dated December 5, 2007, of the Planning Board to gethe applicant’s
request for a minor subdivision to allow one additional residetial house lot.

Kenneth Choquette was present and accompanied by SharomsSoom Donahue,
Tucker & Ciandella, PLLC his attorney. This was origlyacheduled to be heard on
February 26, 2008 but was cancelled due to inclement weatlddebe&ing unable to
arrange for an interpreter. Chair Chivers asked if amftats were present. Steve and
Heidi Cote of 136 Green Road, Raymond, NH 03077 were greSkair Chivers noted
that the board had read the minutes from the Planning Boaeting on 12/5/07 and that
the board understands what the legal and technical issele€lzair Chivers explained
that the board needs to clarify and discuss the isandsthen the board and abutters will
have the opportunity to ask questions before the boardsckse deliberates. Chair
Chivers stated that Sharon Somers could make statenmehte aaid she could start with
her presentation of statements.

Sharon Somers asked if she could submit some othes fanthe board’s consideration.
She then raised the consideration that before prowgetthat Ingrid Byrd would recuse
herself. She explained that she was not suggestingnfmmaent that Ingrid Byrd has pre
judged this case but in light of her husband who is oftlening Board which took part
in the decision she is appealing that it would be appropiaatecuse herself from the



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — March 25, 2008 Page 2 of 5

proceedings and further understands that if this takes fiace will be less then a full
board making the decision on this case. Chair Chiverdfiethrihat the attorney was
asking if Ingrid Byrd would recuse herself before the peslings but asked that she
make her presentation first and when she was done thengZ®&oard would discuss
Ingrid Byrd recusing herself.

Sharon Somers explained that the applicant is askirtig ave the Planning Board’s
decision on 12/05/07 reversed based upon the plain languageatithance regarding 1
% contiguous non-wetland acres. She further explaingdhbgplain language does not
speak to, or prohibited the use of any utility easemerangrland burdened by utility
easement to be used as part of the calculation. THeagpmade note that they have no
intention of building within the utility easement araairothe setbacks areas. The house,
septic system etc will be placed in areas not subgeattitity easement and out side
setbacks. Further she asked the Zoning Board in theirdewatsons be sensitive to the
concept of administrative gloss. She also asked to suimmirecord a copy of Attorney
Bart Mayer’s letter dated November 13, 2007.

The Zoning Board discussed confidential and privileged infaoma Chair Chivers
stated that regardless if it is privileged and confidemtial applicant has it and has read
it and submitted it into record.

Sharon Somers explained the law in NH indicates the of administrative gloss
requires various boards to adhere to past practices ahérfunotes she had submitted a
packet on March 6, 2008 indicating past practice of 6 diffesehtivisions approved in
the past 3-4 years in which wetland setback areas leere used in calculating uplands
and asked the board to honor that.

Chair Chivers thanked Sharon Somers for the brief sugnndady Szot inquired about
the packet that the applicant is referring to and siheeboard has not seen the packet,
that they need to review it. Chair Chivers asked if tha&rftng board approved anything
where utility easements were used in the calculatidrisuiddable areas. The Attorney
replied that she would look into that further and noteditha not her understanding that
has been an issue regarding the use of the area whstibjesct to utility easement in
calculations.

Next Chair Chivers asked if Ingrid Byrd should excuse d&f. Ingrid stated that she
does not have a problem with this case and also expléwaedhe and her husband do
not always agree and have sat on boards and have vqiesitepof each other. Further,
she knows the ordinances and goes by the ordinances aotdbpns. Council explained
that the law says council can ask for a recusal bunatgly it is the individual board
member’s decision and if the Board member opts to aoatine council would note their
objection. This is similar to a juror’s standard. Cl@lmvers stated let the record show
that Ingrid Byrd was asked to recuse herself by the coandilshe has declined and also
let the record show that council objects.

Chair Chivers read into record the reasons for the PlanBoayd's Denial: “The
Character of the land is unsuitable for the subdivipenSubdivision Regulation section
11.02. The lot is not compact or regular in shape per Zonmdg&nhces 6.01F. The lot
does not have 1 % contiguous acres per Zoning Ordinaacesrns10.05C. The PSNH
easement is not considered buildable land.”

Chair Chivers asked if both lots contained 1.5 acres contigugltable land and if the
original set backs were used in the calculations and whlatentage was used. The



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — March 25, 2008 Page 3 of 5

applicant replied that the original lot 146 had 1.5 acoesiguous non-wetland acres and
the proposed lot 146.1 had 1.59 contiguous non-wetland acrehatnihe original set
backs were used in the calculations but did not know theeptge used in the
calculations along with what percentage of the utdagement was used.

Sharon Somers stated that PSNH easement tells yoyotlhaannot put a dwelling on the
easement but does not preclude that you cannot use thedalé the property for
residential use. She showed on the plan where theneasean through the back of the
lots and showed areas of setbacks and noted all the dvewis in the front area of the
lot and that the PSNH easement would stay as raw ladadter the subdivision.

The Co-op easement is shown on plans in the fronhefidt. The easement restricts
constructing a building but can used for other purposes. glisovn on plans are the
pockets of wetlands in the front portion and it wasedahere is a portion immediately
adjacent to Lane Road which does not have wetlandshvidiahere the driveway will
go.

Chair Chivers asked council to please explain how the PlarBaayd erred in its
interpretation of section 11.02 in the subdivision regulati@ouncil stated that the error
was in the interpretations that the applicant could mdude setback or utility easement
areas in terms to calculate the required area.

Chair Chivers said he was all set with his questions anddattlee board for their
guestions.

Judy Szot pointed out that set backs by definitiomateuildable so why should they be
an issue in this case. Further she said the lot is noirfg now and this subdivision
would create 2 non-conforming lots and did not beliexa the board had the right to
create non conforming lots. She also brought up thatitéguilar shape proposed would
create a 50’ piece of land in a portion of both lotsthv25’setbacks this would make the
50’ piece of land non-buildable.

Sharon Somers answered that the definition of buildeble ordinances at time the
application was submitted does not reference setbacksoluge calculating set backs
as 1 % contiguous non wetlands.

Arlene Richter noted she still have a lot of questiomswanted to review the packet.
Amanda Soares asked what the original lot looked likerbefte subdivision and if the
applicant would be living in this new home and questionedrtbgularly shaped lot.
Council replied that the applicant’s intentions of usse not definite and the lots were
subdivided per the Planning Board’s suggestion to put the ltomg #he stonewall so it
would preserve the stonewall.

Ingrid Byrd asked what the original frontage was and whatlavthe two new proposed
lots would be. Council stated the minimum requireme20' and the original lot has
over 500'. The proposed frontage will be approximately 303’ and. &t asked if the
land was accessible only from Lane Road and coundikcepes.

Chair Chivers asked the other board members and the audighegy had any other
guestions. Mary Girard asked how the council obtained comedspoe from the Town
Attorney. Council answered it came via correspondence fhenengineer but the letter
was addressed to the Planning Board.

Sharon Somers stated that she felt the applicant haghtito see this letter as the
decision was made on 12/5/08 subsequent to that correspondeneera on to explain
that the Planning Board explicitly stated in the minutes tiii@y based their opinion on



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — March 25, 2008 Page 4 of 5

the town attorney’s opinion and she felt that thereame obligation on the part of the
board to indicate what the opinion consists of so thancd could have some
effectiveness to try to counter that position.

Chair Chivers explained that there were two opinions frieenAttorney. One supported
the Planning Board in denying the applicant because the land tinedBSNH easement
is non-buildable in his estimation. Also in the lettér. Ladd from RSL brought up the
point that past practices have allowed the use of detbamalculations and that is when
Bart Mayer gave his opinion on how to defend ourselvesaretient that issue is raised.
Chair Chivers said the Planning Board did abide by an attoraely/Ee in its earlier
decision. Then Mr. Ladd brought up the fact that other sigidns have been approved
and that is when the attorney brought up the admitiigrgloss issue with the board.
Chair Chivers felt it was fair that the letter is Inetrecords and that the applicant should
know how the Board arrived at their decision. Then $ked if there were any other
guestions anyone would like to ask.

Steve Cote agreed that Town’s assessment was fathehketnd is not buildable.

Chair Chivers suggested closing the hearing but discussingdhe of Administrative
Gloss was agreed to be important by other board membdrapplicant. Chair Chivers
stated that as far as he knew this issue has never lpeiore the Zoning Board before,
The Zoning Board in this town has never been asked to mniakenterpretation of
calculating land under easements. If the Planning Boardpgmeved subdivisions in the
past that were in violation of the zoning ordinances,ZAtwing Board has no authority
over it since no one appealed it or brought to this bd4aging brought this to the board
Chair Chivers stated that they have no choice but to makenest interpretation of the
ordinances and definitions in the ordinances. Also, ifethe administrative gloss he is
not sure what the Board is required to do, to continoestake that was made a year ago
and what is the burden upon this board under administrdtige?

Sharon Somers explained that as part of the Zoning Bogiol'under 674.33, the Zoning
Board shall have the power to hear and decide appetls dlleged there is error in any
decision and she asked the Zoning Board to review the deaiterpretation of the
Planning Board and part of that decision is taking a loak they have administered the
ordinance in the past. Also she went on to say, how yoth& heart of the problem, if
the problem does need to be fixed. She stated you fegislatively, prospectively and
she wants to make sure this applicant is treated as appdéicants have been treated in
the past and if there is problem you fix it going forwardufxil claims that it is
administrative error on the part of the planning boarddat him otherwise.

Chair Chivers stated that the Planning Board has never esdbR®NH easements. He
asked that the applicant provide all subdivisions in tventfor the past 5 years that
approved using Public Service or Co-op easements as pdlte otalculations for
minimum lot sizes.

Chair Chivers clarified that in order for this subdivisionbe approved the board would
have to gloss over both the setbacks and the utiligneassts and furthered stated that the
applicant does not have an administrative gloss defandgecasement.

Sharon Somers felt the applicant should be able tothesePSNH easement in the
calculation because of the language in the ordinandes.i§ a separate issue from the
issue of the administrative gloss.



Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes — March 25, 2008 Page 5 of 5

Judy Szot asked it there were any case laws that alakne use of PSNH or Co-op
easements. Council answered it depends upon the definitiaarslinances. There have
been some case laws but they talk about having speamifguage in the ordinance to
support that contention but unfortunately the Town of @Gdsdrdinances do not have
this specific language.

Chair Chiversclosed case #55andmovedto continue the hearing until next month. He
requested from the applicant information before the hearing to show how much of
the easement and setback land is needed in this caselothe required minimum 1 %
contiguous buildable land on the existing lot and the prexgbdst. He also requested a
copy from the applicant of the Public Service of NHegasnt allowing for residential
use of the property and what voltage the lines are. ppkcant was hesitant to commit
to provide information on the voltage of lines in easement

The Zoning Board will review information from the Mar6h2008 packet and the April
Packet that the applicant will provide mid April.

For the record Ingrid is not the chairman as statelerapplicant’s letter.

Applicant requested after the board’s discussion ofriftermation that they be allowed
to make comments.

Case #552Applicant: Kenneth and Holly Choquette; Owner: Same;Location: 34
Lane Road, Map 414 Lot 146; for a variance under 6.01F to allow one aitidnal
residential house lot on an irregularly shaped lot.

Kenneth Choquette was present and accompanied by SharomsSoom Donahue,
Tucker & Ciandella, PLLC his attorney. Chair Chivers askedncil if there was
anything else to add. Sharon Somers talked about the haigkia as shown in the
March packet. This irregular lot has sufficient massbe subdivided, unlike other
surrounding lots that have a reasonable chance of bebdjvided into regular shapes.
This property starts out unique but does have enough landtenbssubdivided because
of its current shape and therefore requires reliaé proposed configuration is to keep
the integrity of the stone wall. The appearance wokldke two regular lots from the
road. In the March Packet there are 2 examples afigglmns showing the Planning
Board not requiring a variance for irregularly shaped lotsar@ Somers further
indicates this application appears to be under heightartirscrcompared by other
subdivisions that have come before this PB.

Chair Chivers asked if anyone had any other questions.

Arlene RichterMotion to continue the case #552 until April 22, 2008 meet8®rond
by Amanda Soares. The board is not asking for any méremation on this case.

Chair Chivers asked if there were any other matters ddfer board. Also, noted that
since Ingrid Byrd and Amanda Soares started Case 551 amd55asthat they will
continue to sit on the board to finish these casespih 22, 2008.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:35 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Sharon Carrier
Recording Secretary



